
 
CDRPA Meeting Agenda May 25th, 2021 Page 1 of 2 

 
 

 
  

                   
Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central Washington 

 
 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Meeting Agenda 
May 25th, 2021 

9:00 am 
 
 

In order to maximize social distancing related to COVID-19, the meeting 
 will be held at the CTC and remotely using Zoom Virtual Conference. 

 
   

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
*Note: When the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority meeting is called to order, the Port of Chelan 
County and Port of Douglas County meetings are simultaneously called to order. 

  
II. INTRODUCTIONS 
 
III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

CDRPA: Approval of Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Minutes of May 11th, 2021 
Meeting; and April 2021 Commission Meeting Calendar 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS 
• Chelan Airport Master Plan – Jim Kuntz 
 

VI. CDRPA ACTION ITEMS   
(1) Approval of Chelan Airport Master Plan 
(2) Authorization to Bid Pangborn Airport Aviation Ramp Project  
(3) Adoption of Revised Project Budget – Waterville Airport Pavement Rehabilitation 

Project 
 

VII. CDRPA INFORMATIONAL ITEMS (Board may take action on any items listed)  
(4) Property Marketing – Drone Videos 
(5) Economic Development Stakeholders – Breakfast & Lunches 

 
VIII. MISCELLANEOUS STAFF REPORTS 

• CEO 
• Director of Finance & Administration 
• Director of Airports 
• Director of Economic & Business Development 
• Public Works & Capital Projects Manager 
• Property & Maintenance Manager 
• CTC Manager 

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
X. REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

 



 
CDRPA Meeting Agenda May 25th, 2021 Page 2 of 2 

XI. ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

XII. EXECUTIVE SESSION: An Executive Session may be called during the meeting.  The purpose 
must be announced and is limited by RCW 42.30.110.  Examples include: (1) to discuss with legal 
counsel litigation, potential litigation and/or legal risks (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)); (2) to consider the 
acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when public knowledge regarding such consideration 
would cause a likelihood of increased price (RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)); and (3) to consider the 
minimum price at which real estate will be offered for sale or lease when public knowledge regarding 
such consideration would cause a likelihood of decreased price (final action selling or leasing public 
property shall be taken in a meeting open to the public)(RCW 42.30.110(1)(c)); and (4) to evaluate 
the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public 
employee(RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)) 

 
XIII. NCW EDD Opportunity Zone Lunch 12:30 pm – Badger Mountain Brewery 

 
XIV.  ADJOURN 

 
PLEASE NOTE:  The agenda is tentative only. The Board of Directors may add, delete, or postpone items and may take 
action on any item not on the agenda. The Directors may also move agenda items during the meeting. 
If you wish to address the Regional Port Authority on a non-agenda or an agenda item, please raise your hand to be 
recognized by the President.  When you have been recognized, give your name and address before your comments. 
The Board of Directors is committed to maintaining a meeting atmosphere of mutual respect and speakers are 
encouraged to honor this principal. 

 
The Port Authority office is ADA compliant. Please contact the Administrative Office at 509-884-4700 at least three (3) 
days in advance if you need any language, hearing or physical accommodation.  



 May 11th, 2021 Page 1 of 5  

 

             
    
            

            Board of Directors 
 Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

   Meeting Minutes 
  May 11th, 2021 

9:00 am 
 
Present:  Directors    
 JC Baldwin, Director    Jim Huffman, Director   
 Rory Turner, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director   
 Donn Etherington, Director        Mark Spurgeon, Director   
  
 Staff 
 Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer   Monica Lough, Dir. of Finance & Admin.  
 Trent Moyers, Director of Airports  Ron Russ, Property Manager  
 Ron Cridlebaugh, Dir. of Economic Dev.   Craig Larsen, Econ. Dev. Manager   
 Stacie de Mestre, Public Works & Cap. Projects Mgr. Tricia Degnan, CTC Manager (Zoom) 
 Cami Harris, Executive Assistant  Sarah Deenik, Comm. Coordinator (Zoom) 
 Pete Fraley, Legal Counsel   Bealinda Tidd, Accounting Specialist (Zoom) 
 Quentin Batjer, Legal Counsel  Laura Camarillo Reyes, CTC Asst. (Zoom) 
 Esther McKivor, Accounting Specialist (Zoom)  
      
 Guests    

Mayor Bob Goedde, City of Chelan (Zoom)   Cynthia Weed, K&L Gates (Zoom) 
Erin McCardle, City of Chelan (Zoom)  Ron Nielsen, SBDC (Zoom)  
Erik Howe, RH2 (Zoom)  John Morosco, SBDC (Zoom)   
Ray Dobbs (Zoom)   

  
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (CDRPA) Meeting was called to order 
at 9:00 am. Due to COVID-19 restrictions, the meeting was held at Confluence 
Technology Center and via Zoom as previously posted in the required Public 
Meeting Notice. 
 
Introductions were made. 
 
Conflict of Interest: None 
 
CONSENT AGENDAS: 
 
CDRPA CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda consisting of Minutes of April 
27th, 2021 Meeting; CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-11 voiding check #8022; and Check Register 
Pages #2021-12-#2021-15 including Electronic Transfers was presented and the following 
action was taken:  
 

 
Motion No.  05-01-21 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    Rory Turner 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon 

To approve the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda 
consisting of Minutes of April 27th, 2021 Meeting; CDRPA Resolution No. 
2021-11 voiding check #8022; and Check Register Pages #2021-12-
#2021-15 including Electronic Transfers, as presented. 
 
     Motion passed 5-0. 
 
 
     



 May 11th, 2021 Page 2 of 5  

 
POCC CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
The Port of Chelan County Consent Agenda consisting of Check Register Page #2021-05 was 
presented and the following action was taken: 
 

Motion No.  05-02-21 POCC 
  Moved by:    JC Baldwin 
  Seconded by:  Donn Etherinton 

To approve the Port of Chelan County Consent Agenda consisting of 
Check Register Page #2021-05, as presented. 
 
     Motion passed 3-0. 

 
PODC CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
The Port of Douglas County Consent Agenda consisting of Check Register Page #2021-03 was 
presented and the following action was taken: 
 

Motion No.  05-03-21 PODC 
  Moved by:    W. Alan Loebsack 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon 

To approve the Port of Douglas County Consent Agenda consisting of 
Check Register Page #2021-03, as presented. 
 
     Motion passed 2-0. 

 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Small Business Development Center – Ron Nielsen and John Morosco from the SBDC 
provided a 1st Qtr 2021 review of their work and activities. They also provided an update on 
the Working Washington Round 4 Grant Program. The SBDC will continue to provide quarterly 
reports to the Regional Port Board. 
 
Former Silicon Smelter Site at Rock Island – Kuntz outlined the studies completed to 
date at the former Rock Island Smelter Site concerning site characterization. He also reviewed 
the Adaptive Reuse Study and a Planned Action Environmental Impact Statement previously 
completed. He also provided a financial analysis of site redevelopment costs noting the 
project is not financially feasible at this time. Discussions ensued. The Board concurred with 
this assessment. 
 
 
ACTION ITEMS: 

 
Purchase & Sale Agreement Lineage South Node – Port of Chelan County Action 
Item – Kuntz provided information on the proposed Purchase & Sale Agreement with 
Restoration 1 for Lineage South Node. The Agreement includes a 90-day feasibility period. 
Discussion ensued and the following actions were taken: 
 

 
Motion No.  05-04-21 POCC 

  Moved by:    JC Baldwin 
  Seconded by:  Rory Turner  

To authorize the Executive Director of the Port of Chelan County to sign 
the Purchase and Sale Agreement with Restoration 1 for Lineage South 
Node. 

      
           Motion passed 3-0. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 May 11th, 2021 Page 3 of 5  

 
 
Purchase & Sale Agreement Lineage South Node – Chelan Douglas Regional Port 
Authority Concurrence: 
 
 

Motion No.  05-05-21 CDRPA  
  Moved by:    JC Baldwin 
  Seconded by:  Donn Etherington  

To approve the sale of Lineage South Node by the Port of Chelan 
County to Restoration 1, as presented. 

      
           Motion passed 5-0. 
 
 
Director Loebsack called for a 5-minute break at 10:25 am. Meeting reconvened at 
10:30 am. 
 
PRESENTATIONS, Continued: 
 
Tax Increment Financing – Cynthia Weed with K&L Gates provided an update on the new 
Tax Increment Financing Law signed by the Governor yesterday. The law permits cities, 
counties and port districts to create Tax Increment Areas (TIA’s). This is a new economic 
development tool which the Regional Port will explore for future projects. An opportunity for 
discussion and questions was provided.  
 
ACTION ITEMS, Continued: 
 
IB#2 Pavement Preservation Project – de Mestre reviewed the IB#2 Pavement Project 
noting $150,000 for the project was included in the 2021 Budget. The parking lot is shared 
with the Wenatchee School District and they have agreed to participate in the project at 32%. 
The Engineer’s estimate for project is $142,000 including WSST. The following action was 
taken:  

 
Motion No.  05-06-21 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    Mark Spurgeon 
  Seconded by:  Jim Huffman  

To authorize the CEO to solicit bids for IB#2 Pavement Preservation 
Project. 

      
           Motion passed 6-0. 
 
 
Executive Flight Building/Hangar Complex – Kuntz reported for security reasons, staff 
recommends the Executive Flight Building/Hangar Complex not be used to host fundraising 
events. The following action was taken: 
 

Motion No.  05-07-21 CDRPA 
  Moved by:    Mark Spurgeon 
  Seconded by:  Rory Turner  

To establish a policy that the Executive Flight Building/Hangar Complex 
will not be used to host fundraising events. 

      
           Motion passed 6-0. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 May 11th, 2021 Page 4 of 5  

 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
 

• Latino Trades District – Kuntz provided an update on the Latino Trades District 
Concept for reuse of the former Giga Watt Site. Kuntz attended the Wenatchee Valley 
Chamber’s Hispanic Business Council meeting last week and the concept was well 
received. Senator Murray’s office continues to be a strong advocate for the project as 
well.  Kuntz recommended the Regional Port retain Jeannie Beckett of The Beckett 
Group, at an established cost of $25,000, to assist the Regional Port in applying for an 
Economic Development Administration (EDA) Grant. Discussions ensued and the 
following action was taken:  

 
 

Motion No.  05-08-21 CDRPA 
  Moved by:    Rory Turner 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon 

To authorize the CEO to retain The Beckett Group to assist in seeking 
an EDA Grant.       
      
     Motion passed 6-0. 

 
 

• Chelan County .09 Sales Tax Application – Cashmere Mill District – Kuntz reported 
the Regional Port recently submitted an application to Chelan County for .09 Sales Tax 
Grant in the amount of $200,000. If successful, the funds would be used for wood waste 
remediation at the Cashmere Mill District property North of Sunset Highway to ready the 
site for development.   
 

• CTC Marketing – Kuntz provided an update on a lead for space at the CTC. Regional Port 
Staff will continue to pursue. 

 
• Chelan/Douglas Property Owners – Billing Zip Codes Outside of Washington 

State – Cridlebaugh reviewed a report of property owners in Chelan and Douglas Counties 
who have billing addresses outside of Washington State. This information was gathered to 
help determine potential destinations for additional air service out of Pangborn.  
 

• Aviation Ramp Project – Gylcol Collection System – Kuntz reviewed the current 
Glycol collection system and options for a new system. Moyers provided additional 
information. Staff will contact the FAA and Alaska Airlines to further discuss options and 
more information will be provided at an upcoming Board meeting.         

 
MISC STAFF REPORTS: 
 

 Kuntz provided information and updates including:  
• Christina Nulf recently signed a Settlement Agreement for a past concession 

agreement at Orondo River Park. The Regional Port is awaiting payment.  
• WPPA Awards Ceremony is May 21st. The Regional Port will hold a Commissioner/Staff 

luncheon at the CTC to watch the ceremony via Zoom. 
 
 Moyers provided information and updates including: 

•  Update on the FAA Environmental Assessment. 
•  Reported there was trespasser on the runway last week. 
•  Update on airport parking lot management. 

 
 Cridlebaugh provided information and updates including:  

•  Update on the upcoming Flywheel Investment Conference; the Regional Port still has a 
few tickets left. 

•  Reported on additional funding from Department of Commerce for the ADO’s. Port 
Douglas County and Port of Chelan County will each receive an additional $100,000 
this year. 

  
 



 May 11th, 2021 Page 5 of 5  

 
 Larsen provided information and updates including:  

• Reported on a potential temporary tenant for the Pybus Incubator Space. 
 
 Degnan provided information and updates including:  

• CTC elevators repair update. 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT – An opportunity for public comment was provided; however, no public 
comments were received. 
 
REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS: Did not review 
 
ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Directors provided various updates. 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 1:25 pm. 
   
 
Signed and dated this 25th day of May, 2021. 
 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
 
 
  
  
  _________________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director     Jim Huffman, Director 
 
          
     ________________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
___________________________________  _________________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director     W. Alan Loebsack, Director 



Date Meeting Location JCB RT DE JH MS AL
4/1 Lunch w/ J. Kuntz Pybus X
4/6 Douglas County PUD Meeting Zoom/DC  PUD Office X X X X X
4/7 Lake Chelan Master Plan Mtg. Zoom X
4/9 Pick Up Binder Ex. Flight X X
4/13 CDRPA Board Meeting CTC X X X X X X
4/13 Osborn Stakeholders/Leavenworth City Zoom *X
4/14 District 1 Meeting Zoom X
4/14 NCWEDD Board Meeting Zoom X
4/15 Wen. Valley Chamber Meeting Zoom X
4/15 Tread Meeting Saddlerock Pub *X
4/20 Columbia Basin Dev. League Board Mtg. Zoom X
4/20 WVCC Meeting Zoom X
4/21 GWATA Board Meeting Zoom X
4/21 Chelan Airport Blue Ribbon Panel Mtg. Chelan Airport X
4/22 Upper Valley Commissioners Mtg Big Y X
4/22 Wen. Downtown Assoc. Banquet Convention Center X X
4/22 NCWEDD Ex. Committee Meeting Zoom X
4/23 Pick Up Binder Executive Flight X
4/27 CDRPA Board Meeting CTC X X X X X X
4/27 Osborn Stakeholders/Leavenworth City Zoom *X
4/28 District 1 Meeting Zoom X
4/28 Community Leadership Ad. Committee CTC X
4/28 Meeting w/J. Kuntz; Return Binder Ex. Flight X
4/29 NCWEDD Ex. Committee Meeting Zoom X
4/29 Chelan PUD Strategy Partners Mtg. Zoom X
4/29 WVCC Tourism Meeting Zoom X
4/30 J. Thompson WPPA Update Meeting Telecon X

* 
denotes multiple meetings on same day

April 2021





T/O: 4,400'  LANDING: 4,400'

Long-Term

Alternative No. 4B

RUNWAY AND TAXIWAY RELOCATED

FOR STANDARDS AND APPROACH

(Non-Precision Instrument Approach)

7
:
1
 
T

r
a
n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
S

u
r
f
a
c
e

7
:
1
 
T

r
a
n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
S

u
r
f
a
c
e

E
n

d
 
o

f
 
R

w
y

80 Foot Tree Clear at 2,920' Feet From Runway End

(with no ground elevation change)

2,920 Feet

200' Feet Beyond

Runway End

(Primary Surface)

810 Feet

80' Tree Clear at 810 feet From Runway ℄
(with no ground elevation change)

500' Primary Surface

8
0

 
F

o
o

t

T
r
e

e

Example Cross Section View: Primary and Transitional Surface Clearance

Example Profile View: Approach Surface Clearance

℄

34:1 Approach Surface 

34:1 Approach Surface 

8
0

 
F

o
o

t

T
r
e

e

0

SCALE IN FEET

250 500

N

A/B-II

H

O

W

A

R

D

 

F

L

A

T

 

 

R

D

.

LEGEND

RUNWAY PROTECTION ZONE

RUNWAY SAFETY AREA

RUNWAY OBJECT FREE AREA

PROPERTY LINE

RUNWAY APPROACH SURFACE (ROW 2)

PART 77 APPROACH SURFACE

EXISTING GROUND CONTOURS

BUILDING RESTRICTION LINE

SUGGESTED PROPERTY ACQUISITION

RECOMMENDED PROPERTY ACQUISITION (FEE)

RECOMMENDED PROPERTY ACQUISITION (EASEMENT)

DESIGN AIRCRAFT

A

P

P

L

E

 

A

C

R

E

S

 

R

D

.

H

O

W

A

R

D

 

F

L

A

T

 

 

R

D

.

3

4

C

H

E

L

A

N

 

A

I

R

P

O

R

T

 

R

D

.

U

S

-

9

7

2

1

ALTERNATIVE ACCESS ROUTE TO

HOWARD FLAT ROAD VIA APPLE

ACRES RD AS DEPICTED

7

8

8

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text
UB

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
RSA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROFA

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' BRL

AutoCAD SHX Text
915



22 J-U-B ENGINEERS, Inc.

SHORT-TERM (2021-2025)

ITEM # DESCRIPTION TOTAL FAA 90% State  5% Local

1 Environmental Assessment for B-I Improvements (Not Shown) $    300,000 $      270,000 $     15,000 $          15,000 

2 Acquire Land in Fee or Easement (~54 Acres) $ 2,196,000 $   1,976,400 $   109,800 $        109,800 

3 Residential Relocation $    500,000 $      450,000 $     25,000 $          25,000 

4 Lower/Monitor Tree Heights for Obstruction Clearance $    150,000 $      135,000 $       7,500 $            7,500 

5 Airport Access Road/Howard Flats Road Relocation $    895,000 $      805,500 $     44,750 $          44,750 

6 Construct Taxilane and Vehicle Access for Hangar Relocations $    759,000 $      683,100 $     37,950 $          37,950 

7 Relocate Hangars (13) $    975,000 $      877,500 $     48,750 $          48,750 

8 Extend Runway to 4,000-Feet, Overlay Existing Runway Pavement $ 2,208,000 $   1,987,200 $   110,400 $        110,400 

9 Construct Partial Parallel Taxiway and Connectors $    993,000 $      893,700 $     49,650 $          49,650 

10 Relocate Runway 2 End, Remove Pavements $       66,000 $        59,400 $       3,300 $            3,300 

11 Construct Hangars (Private) $               - $                 - $              - $                   -

$9,042,000 $8,137,800 $452,100 $  452,100.00 

INTERMEDIATE-TERM (2026-2030)

ITEM # DESCRIPTION TOTAL FAA 90% State  5% Local

1 Construct General Aviation Apron $ 1,625,000 $   1,462,500 $     81,250 $          81,250 

2 Construct Fixed Base Operator (FBO) Apron $    825,000 $      742,500 $     41,250 $          41,250 

3 Relocate Fuel Area $    800,000 $      200,000 $              - $        600,000 

4 Construct Taxilane and Vehicle Access for Future Hangars $ 1,055,000 $      949,500 $     52,750 $          52,750 

5 Construct Apron Areas $ 2,273,000 $   2,045,700 $   113,650 $        113,650 

6 Master Plan Update for B-II Eligibility (Not Shown) $    150,000 $      135,000 $       7,500 $            7,500 

7 Environmental Assessment for B-II Improvements (Not Shown) $    300,000 $      270,000 $     15,000 $          15,000 

8 Construct Hangars (Private) $               - $                 - $              - $                   -

$ 7,028,000 $   5,805,200 $   311,400 $        911,400 

COSTS AND FUNDING



23 J-U-B ENGINEERS, Inc.

LONG-TERM (2031-2040)

ITEM # DESCRIPTION TOTAL FAA 90% State  5% Local
1 Acquire Land in Fee or Easement (~31 Acres) $        902,000 $         811,800 $     45,100 $        45,100 

2 Extend Airport Access Road/Howard Flats Road Relocation $        501,000 $         450,900 $     25,050 $        25,050 

3 Relocate Portion of Parallel Taxiway for Group II Separation, Remove Pavements $        653,000 $         587,700 $     32,650 $        32,650 

4 Grading/Clearing to Clear 34:1 Approach Surface for Non-Precision $        500,000 $         450,000 $     25,000 $        25,000 

5 Extend Runway and Parallel Taxiway to 4,400-Feet and Widen Runway to 75-Feet $    1,506,000 $     1,355,400 $     75,300 $        75,300 

6 Construct Apron Areas $        560,000 $         504,000 $     28,000 $        28,000 

7 Construct Taxilane and Vehicle Access for Future Hangars $        206,000 $         185,400 $     10,300 $        10,300 

8 Construct Hangars (Private) $                     - $                      - $                - $                  -

$    4,828,000 $     4,345,200 $   241,400 $     241,400 

SHORT-TERM (2021-2025) $9,042,000

INTERMEDIATE-TERM (2026-2030) $7,028,000

LONG-TERM (2031-2040) $4,828,000

GRAND (2021-2040) TOTALS $20,898,000

COSTS AND FUNDING



Chelan Douglas Regional 
Port Authority 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Directors  

From: Stacie de Mestre 

cc: Jim Kuntz and Trent Moyers 

Date: May 20, 2021 

Re: Pangborn Memorial Airport Terminal Apron Reconstruction 
– Authorization to Solicit Bids 

 
The scope of the Pangborn Memorial Airport Terminal Apron 
Reconstruction project consists of reconstructing and expanding the 
terminal apron, installing a glycol collection system, replacing the 
concrete and hardscape at the terminal entrance, relocating part of 
Taxiway A, and addressing elevation differences between the taxiway 
and runway.  Please see attached for select drawings detailing the key 
elements of this project.  
 
The estimated project schedule is as follows: 
Solicit Bids   May 27, 2021  
Bids Due    June 16, 2021 
Contract Award   *Depends on FAA 
Start Construction  September 2021 
Construction Complete Summer 2022 
 
The 2021 Delegation of Authority requires Board approval prior to 
seeking bids for projects over $100,000.  Staff is seeking authorization 
to solicit bids for the Pangborn Memorial Airport Terminal Apron 
Reconstruction project via the public works process.  Board approval 
will be sought prior to awarding the contract.   



At the meeting we will review the cost estimates for a concrete ramp 
versus an asphalt ramp.  While concrete is going to be significantly 
more expensive, staff continues to believe concrete is the best option. 
We will also review all of the funding sources to pay for the project. 
 
   



X

X
X

X
X

X
X X X X X

XX

PROPOSED TAXIWAY A

OFA OFA OFA OFA OFA OFA OFA OFA OFA OFA

T

O

F

A

T

O

F

A

T

O

F

A

T

O

F

A

T

O

F

A

TERMINAL BUILDING

A1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

B C D F G H I J K L M N O P Q R S T U V W X Y Z AA AB AC AD AE AF AG AH AJ AK AL AM ANE AI

11

12

13

14

15

16

PCC AREA 3 SEE

SHEETS 31 & 32

aazyxwvutsrq8onml ab ac ad ae af ag ah ai aj ak al am an ao ap aq ar as8 at

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

au av aw ax ay azkjhgfedcba

7

6

5

4

3

2

C

.

O

.

C.O.

pi

S S

X X

X

X

PCC AREA 1

(8,000 SY)

PCC AREA 2

(7,700 SY)

300'

20 PANELS @ 15'

300'

20 PANELS @ 15'

2
4
0
'

1
6
 
P

A
N

E
L
S

 
@

 
1
5
'

P

C

:

 

3

1

+

7

9

.

0

6

P
T

:
 
3
2
+

3
6
.
6
5

3

2

33 34 35 36 37 38

P
A

N
G

B
O

R
N

 
M

E
M

O
R

I
A

L
 
A

I
R

P
O

R
T

P
A

V
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
R

A
M

P

30 OF 62

2
2
"
x
3
4
"

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
I
N

G
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

,
 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

 
&

 
P

L
A

N
N

E
R

S

C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T

-
O

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

.
 
T

H
I
S

 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

 
I
S

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

-
O

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

.
 
 
A

N
Y

 
R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

I
O

N
,
 
R

E
U

S
E

 
O

R
 
M

O
D

I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
P

E
R

M
I
S

S
I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

-
O

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

 
I
S

 
S

T
R

I
C

T
L

Y
 
P

R
O

H
I
B

I
T

E
D

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E

D

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

B
O

R
D

E
R

 
S

I
Z

E

PROJECT:

DATE:

W
W

W
.
T

O
-
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

.
C

O
M

N
:
\
2

1
0

0
0

1
\
T

A
S

K
S

\
T

A
S

K
 
O

R
D

E
R

 
2

1
-
0

1
 
-
 
T

E
R

M
I
N

A
L

 
A

P
R

O
N

\
3

_
A

C
A

D
D

W
G

\
S

H
E

E
T

S
\
3

1
 
P

A
V

I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
T

E
R

M
I
N

A
L

 
A

R
E

A
.
D

W
G

,
 
5

/
1

8
/
2

0
2

1

1
7

1
7

 
S

.
 
R

U
S

T
L

E
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2

0
1

S
P

O
K

A
N

E
,
 
W

A
 
9

9
2

2
4

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
5
0
9
)
 
3
1
9
-
2
5
8
0

10 1/2

ATTENTION:

IF THIS BAR DOES NOT MEASURE

1" ON 22x34 SHEET or 1/2"  ON

11x17 SHEET, THEN DRAWING IS

NOT TO SCALE

SHEET:

B
O

I
S

E
 
♦
 
C

O
D

Y
 
♦
 
C

O
E

U
R

 
D

'
A

L
E

N
E

 
♦
 
H

E
B

E
R

 
C

I
T

Y

M
E

R
I
D

I
A

N
 
♦
 
N

A
M

P
A

 
♦
 
S

P
O

K
A

N
E

2
0
2
1

MAY 2021

T
K

V

T
K

V

C
H

M

C
H

M

210001

T
E

R
M

I
N

A
L
 
A

P
R

O
N

 
R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

N
O

.
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

 LEGEND 

EXISTING PAVEMENT

PROPOSED ASPHALT PAVEMENT

PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

TYPE A OR TYPE A-1 - ISOLATION JOINT

TYPE B - HINGED CONTRACTION JOINT W/ TIE-BARS

TYPE C - DOWELED CONTRACTION JOINT

TYPE D - DUMMY CONTRACTION JOINT

TYPE E - DOWELED CONSTRUCTION JOINT

REINFORCED CONCRETE

TAXIWAY OBJECT FREE AREA

TOFA

1. JOINT PATTERNS SHOWN ASSUME PAVING

TWO LANES AT ONE TIME, AND ASSUME

PAVING DIRECTIONS. THE CONTRACTOR

MAY SUBMIT A PLAN FOR APPROVAL BY

THE ENGINEER TO VARY PAVING

DIRECTION

RAMP PAVING NOTES

0 15 30 60 90

SCALE IN FEET

R

R R

HEAVY DUTY PAVEMENT

SEE DETAIL 2 SHEET 33

R

5/19/2021



X
X

XXXXXX

135'

18 PANELS @ 7.5'

M N O P Q R S T U V

PCC AREA 3

(542 SY)

PCC AREAS 1 & 2

SEE SHEET 30

rq8onmlkjhgfedcba

7

6

5

4

3

2

pi

X
X

X

4
5
'

6
 
P

A
N

E
L
S

 
@

 
7
.
5
'

P
A

N
G

B
O

R
N

 
M

E
M

O
R

I
A

L
 
A

I
R

P
O

R
T

P
A

V
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
T

E
R

M
I
N

A
L
 
A

R
E

A
 
3

31 OF 62

2
2
"
x
3
4
"

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
I
N

G
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

,
 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

 
&

 
P

L
A

N
N

E
R

S

C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T

-
O

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

.
 
T

H
I
S

 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

 
I
S

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

-
O

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

.
 
 
A

N
Y

 
R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

I
O

N
,
 
R

E
U

S
E

 
O

R
 
M

O
D

I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
P

E
R

M
I
S

S
I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

-
O

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

 
I
S

 
S

T
R

I
C

T
L

Y
 
P

R
O

H
I
B

I
T

E
D

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E

D

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

B
O

R
D

E
R

 
S

I
Z

E

PROJECT:

DATE:

W
W

W
.
T

O
-
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

.
C

O
M

N
:
\
2

1
0

0
0

1
\
T

A
S

K
S

\
T

A
S

K
 
O

R
D

E
R

 
2

1
-
0

1
 
-
 
T

E
R

M
I
N

A
L

 
A

P
R

O
N

\
3

_
A

C
A

D
D

W
G

\
S

H
E

E
T

S
\
3

1
 
P

A
V

I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
T

E
R

M
I
N

A
L

 
A

R
E

A
.
D

W
G

,
 
5

/
1

8
/
2

0
2

1

1
7

1
7

 
S

.
 
R

U
S

T
L

E
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2

0
1

S
P

O
K

A
N

E
,
 
W

A
 
9

9
2

2
4

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
5
0
9
)
 
3
1
9
-
2
5
8
0

10 1/2

ATTENTION:

IF THIS BAR DOES NOT MEASURE

1" ON 22x34 SHEET or 1/2"  ON

11x17 SHEET, THEN DRAWING IS

NOT TO SCALE

SHEET:

B
O

I
S

E
 
♦
 
C

O
D

Y
 
♦
 
C

O
E

U
R

 
D

'
A

L
E

N
E

 
♦
 
H

E
B

E
R

 
C

I
T

Y

M
E

R
I
D

I
A

N
 
♦
 
N

A
M

P
A

 
♦
 
S

P
O

K
A

N
E

2
0
2
1

MAY 2021

T
K

V

T
K

V

C
H

M

C
H

M

210001

T
E

R
M

I
N

A
L
 
A

P
R

O
N

 
R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

N
O

.
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

 LEGEND 

EXISTING PAVEMENT

PROPOSED ASPHALT PAVEMENT

PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

TYPE A OR TYPE A-1 - ISOLATION JOINT

TYPE B - HINGED CONTRACTION JOINT W/ TIE-BARS

TYPE C - DOWELED CONTRACTION JOINT

TYPE D - DUMMY CONTRACTION JOINT

TYPE E - DOWELED CONSTRUCTION JOINT

REINFORCED CONCRETE

TAXIWAY OBJECT FREE AREA

TOFA

1. JOINT PATTERNS SHOWN ASSUME PAVING

TWO LANES AT ONE TIME, AND ASSUME

PAVING DIRECTIONS. THE CONTRACTOR

MAY SUBMIT A PLAN FOR APPROVAL BY

THE ENGINEER TO VARY PAVING

DIRECTION

RAMP PAVING NOTES

0 5 10 20 30

SCALE IN FEET

R

M
A

T
C

H
 
L
I
N

E

S
E

E
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
3
2

R

8

34

8

34

AIRCRAFT POWER RACK, TYP OF 3,

SEE DETAIL 7 SHEET 34 AND SHEET 55.

ELECTRICAL HANDHOLE FOR

FUTURE AIRCRAFT POWER RACK

SEE DETAIL 4 SHEET 56

5/19/2021



X
X

X
X X X X X

W X Y Z AA AB AC AD AE AF AG AH AJ AK AL AM ANAI

TERMINAL BUILDING

aazyxwvuts ab ac ad ae af ag ah ai aj ak al am an ao ap aq ar as8 at

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

au av aw ax ay az

255'

34 PANELS @ 7.5'

PCC AREA 4

(1311 SY)

C

.

O

.

C.O.

6
0
'

8
 
P

A
N

E
L
S

 
@

 
7
.
5
'

P
A

N
G

B
O

R
N

 
M

E
M

O
R

I
A

L
 
A

I
R

P
O

R
T

P
A

V
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
T

E
R

M
I
N

A
L
 
A

R
E

A
 
4

32 OF 62

2
2
"
x
3
4
"

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
I
N

G
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

,
 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

 
&

 
P

L
A

N
N

E
R

S

C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T

-
O

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

.
 
T

H
I
S

 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

 
I
S

 
T

H
E

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F
 
T

-
O

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

.
 
 
A

N
Y

 
R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

I
O

N
,
 
R

E
U

S
E

 
O

R
 
M

O
D

I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
I
S

 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

 
O

R
 
I
T

S
 
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
P

E
R

M
I
S

S
I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

-
O

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

 
I
S

 
S

T
R

I
C

T
L

Y
 
P

R
O

H
I
B

I
T

E
D

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E

D

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

B
O

R
D

E
R

 
S

I
Z

E

PROJECT:

DATE:

W
W

W
.
T

O
-
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
S

.
C

O
M

N
:
\
2

1
0

0
0

1
\
T

A
S

K
S

\
T

A
S

K
 
O

R
D

E
R

 
2

1
-
0

1
 
-
 
T

E
R

M
I
N

A
L

 
A

P
R

O
N

\
3

_
A

C
A

D
D

W
G

\
S

H
E

E
T

S
\
3

1
 
P

A
V

I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 
-
 
T

E
R

M
I
N

A
L

 
A

R
E

A
.
D

W
G

,
 
5

/
1

8
/
2

0
2

1

1
7

1
7

 
S

.
 
R

U
S

T
L

E
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2

0
1

S
P

O
K

A
N

E
,
 
W

A
 
9

9
2

2
4

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
5
0
9
)
 
3
1
9
-
2
5
8
0

10 1/2

ATTENTION:

IF THIS BAR DOES NOT MEASURE

1" ON 22x34 SHEET or 1/2"  ON

11x17 SHEET, THEN DRAWING IS

NOT TO SCALE

SHEET:

B
O

I
S

E
 
♦
 
C

O
D

Y
 
♦
 
C

O
E

U
R

 
D

'
A

L
E

N
E

 
♦
 
H

E
B

E
R

 
C

I
T

Y

M
E

R
I
D

I
A

N
 
♦
 
N

A
M

P
A

 
♦
 
S

P
O

K
A

N
E

2
0
2
1

MAY 2021

T
K

V

T
K

V

C
H

M

C
H

M

210001

T
E

R
M

I
N

A
L
 
A

P
R

O
N

 
R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

N
O

.
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

 LEGEND 

EXISTING PAVEMENT

PROPOSED ASPHALT PAVEMENT

PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT

TYPE A OR TYPE A-1 - ISOLATION JOINT

TYPE B - HINGED CONTRACTION JOINT W/ TIE-BARS

TYPE C - DOWELED CONTRACTION JOINT

TYPE D - DUMMY CONTRACTION JOINT

TYPE E - DOWELED CONSTRUCTION JOINT

REINFORCED CONCRETE

TAXIWAY OBJECT FREE AREATOFA

1. JOINT PATTERNS SHOWN ASSUME PAVING

TWO LANES AT ONE TIME, AND ASSUME

PAVING DIRECTIONS. THE CONTRACTOR

MAY SUBMIT A PLAN FOR APPROVAL BY

THE ENGINEER TO VARY PAVING

DIRECTION

RAMP PAVING NOTES

DOOR #1

DOOR #3

DOOR #2

0 5 10 20 30

SCALE IN FEET

R

M
A

T
C

H
 
L
I
N

E

S
E

E
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
3
1

MAIN ENTRY DOOR

HVAC PAD

TO REMAIN

R

R R

R R

R

R
R

R

R

PROPOSED GATE

8

34

GENERATOR PAD

TO REMAIN

SIDA DOOR

STAFF DOOR

EXISTING CONCRETE PAD TO REMAIN

PROPOSED PAVERS

PROPOSED STAMPED CONCRETE

QUARRY SPALLS

DECORATIVE METAL FENCE PANELS,

VARIES IN HEIGHT 18'' - 3'

ENTRY SIGN

HANDHOLE

AIRCRAFT POWER RACK, TYP OF 3,

SEE DETAIL 7 SHEET 34 AND SHEET 55.

ELECTRICAL HANDHOLE FOR

FUTURE AIRCRAFT POWER RACK

SEE DETAIL 4 SHEET 56

R

5/19/2021



35' @ 2.0%

6''S
8''SD

x x x x x x x
x

x
x x x

x

x

x x x

x

TEL

H

 Y  D

TS
A

TS
A

RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA RSA

8''SS SDSDSDSDSDSD

SD

8''W

8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W 8''W

8'
'W

8'
'W

J JJ

C.O.

C.O.

H  Y

 D

FO

WM

J

S S

E

E

EEE

E E E
E

E

E

E

E
E E E E E E E

E

E

E

E
E E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

EEE

EE

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

T5 T6 T7 T8

T9

T10

T11

T12

T13

T14

T15

T16

T17

T18 T19

T20

T21
T22

T23

T24

T25

T26

T27

T28

T29

T30

T31T32T33T34
T35

T36

T37

T38

T39

T40

T41
T42

T43T44

FAA
FAA

FAA
FAA

FAA
FAA

FAA FAA FAA FAA FAA FAA

CBSD SD SD SD SD SDCB

SD SD SD SD SD

FM

CBCB

CBCB

SD SD

EEEEE

CBSD SD SD SD SD SDCB

SD SD SD SD SD

FM

CBCB

CBCB

SD SD

 5.5' @ 2.0%

5.5' @ 2.0%

30.00'

4.5' @ 2.0%

5.5' @ 2.0%

VEGETATED FILTER STRIP

TRANSITION AREA, 5.5' TO 35' WIDTH

4.5' @ 2.0%

X

INFILTRATION TRENCH 1,
SEE DETAIL 2 ON SHEET 45

INFILTRATION TRENCH 3A,
SEE DETAIL 2 ON SHEET 46

INFILTRATION TRENCH 3B,
SEE DETAIL 2 ON SHEET 46

DUPLEX SUBMERSIBLE PUMPS (VFD),
SEE DETAIL 1 ON SHEET 50

88.6K GAL GLYCOL
STORAGE TANK

SNOW STORAGE AREA

1

1

APRON

CONTRACTOR TO
CONNECT TO (E) 8" SD.
FIELD VERIFY (E) INVERT

METERING PIT, VALVE VAULT,
AND SAMPLING POINT, SEE
DETAIL 1 ON SHEET 50

AUTOSAMPLER ENCLOSURE
AND CONCRETE PAD, SEE

DETAILS 1 & 2 ON SHEET 51

(E) INFILTRATION
TRENCH

(E) FAA VAULT AND
CONCRETE PAD

TRENCH
RESTORATION

S0
P1

S1

P2A
S2
P3

CONSTRUCT GRAVEL
ACCESS ROAD, SEE

DETAIL 4 ON SHEET 46

90 DEG MJ BEND WITH
THRUST BLOCKS

P4
S3

S10

P10
P2B

S6S4

P5

S5 TD2P11

P6

S7

TD1A

P7

INFILTRATION TRENCH 2A,
SEE DETAIL 2 ON SHEET 46

(E) SD STRUCTURE. PROTECT
IN PLACE. ADJUST TO FINAL
GRADE AS REQUIREDCONNECTION TO 8" SD,

OUTLET UNKNOWN,
(E) INV: APPROX. 1223.91

2

2

S11

GROOVED ASPHALT SHOULDER AS
FLOW SPREADER, SHEET DETAILS 2
& 3 ON SHEET 48

INFILTRATION TRENCH 2B,
SEE DETAIL 2 ON SHEET 46

S12
P13

S13

INFILTRATION
TRENCH 2C, SEE
DETAIL 2 ON SHEET 46

TERMINAL BUILDING
FF EL = 1224.33

P8 S8
P9

S9
TD1B

FLARED END WITH RIP-RAP
PROTECTION, SEE DETAIL
3 ON SHEET 46

GRADING AND LANDSCAPE
RESTORATION AREA, SEE

DETAIL 2 ON SHEET 46

VEGETATED FILTER STRIP
EXTENDS TO END OF
PAVEMENT IMPROVEMENTS,
SEE INSET

EX SSMH T04, SEE
FORCE MAIN TIE-IN
DETAIL 1 ON SHEET 49

EXISTING GRAVEL
ACCESS ROAD

2

2

2

1

RESERVE AREA FOR
FUTURE STORAGE TANKS,
NO CONSTRUCTION ITEMS

x

x

xxx

EEEE

E E E E

T3 T4

T45T46

STATIO
N: 5

3+
85

OFFSET: 8
' L

END OF VEGETATED
FILTER STRIP

X:
\1

62
29

00
\2

10
08

4.
01

\T
EC

H
\C

AD
\D

R
AW

IN
G

S\
D

R
AI

N
AG

E 
PL

AN
.D

W
G

5/
19

/2
02

1 
10

:5
7:

01
 A

M

22
"x

34
"

C
  2

01
9 T

-O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

 T
H

IS
 IN

ST
R

U
M

EN
T 

IS
 T

H
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
T-

O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S.

  A
N

Y 
R

EP
R

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
, R

EU
SE

 O
R

 M
O

D
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

TH
IS

 IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T 
O

R
 IT

S 
C

O
N

TE
N

TS
 W

IT
H

O
U

T 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
 O

F 
T-

O
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S 

IS
 S

TR
IC

TL
Y 

PR
O

H
IB

IT
ED

.

D
ES

IG
N

ED

D
R

AW
N

C
H

EC
KE

D

AP
PR

O
VE

D

BO
R

D
ER

 S
IZ

E

PROJECT:

DATE:

X:
\1

62
29

00
\2

10
08

4.
01

\T
EC

H
\C

AD
\D

R
AW

IN
G

S\
D

R
AI

N
AG

E 
PL

AN
.D

W
G

, 5
/1

8/
20

21

10 1/2
ATTENTION:

IF THIS BAR DOES NOT MEASURE
1" ON 22x34 SHEET or 1/2"  ON

11x17 SHEET, THEN DRAWING IS
NOT TO SCALE

SHEET:

M
ea

d 
an

d 
H

un
t, 

In
c.41

1 
1s

t A
ve

nu
e 

So
ut

h
 S

ui
te

 6
10

Se
at

tle
, W

A 
98

10
4

ph
on

e:
 8

88
-3

64
-7

27
2

m
ea

dh
un

t.c
om

D
AT

E
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S
N

O
.

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

00 40 80

NOTES:

1. SEE SHEET 44 FOR PIPE AND STRUCTURE INFORMATION

1

KEY NOTES

TRENCH DRAIN, SEE DETAIL 1 ON SHEET 46

22
"x

34
"

TE
R

M
IN

AL
 A

PR
O

N
 R

EC
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

PA
N

G
BO

R
N

 M
EM

O
R

IA
L 

AI
R

PO
R

T

D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PL
AN

1622900-210084.01

MAY 2021

AM
B SB

KD
N

/S
AS

TS
G

43 OF 62

2 VEGETATED FILTER STRIP, SEE
DETAILS 1,2, AND 3 ON SHEET 48

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E

M
ATC

H
LIN

E

TA
L SILAS GLASS

  
ASW HF INO GE TT OA NTS

54892







Chelan Douglas Regional 
Port Authority 

 

 
Memo 
To: Board of Directors  

From: Stacie de Mestre 

cc: Jim Kuntz and Trent Moyers 

Date: May 18, 2021 

Re: Waterville Airport Pavement Rehab Project – Revised Budget 

The preconstruction meeting for the Waterville Airport Pavement 
Rehabilitation Project was held on May 13, 2021.  During their site 
visit, JUB Engineers field measured and marked every crack to be 
repaired.  They discovered there were far more Type III repairs than 
estimated.  Type III cracks are larger than 2” in width and require 
mastic as the repair material.  Based on the actual quantities and the 
contractor’s unit price, JUB is suggesting a change order in the 
amount of $54,830.40.  At this time all WSDOT Aviation grant money is 
allocated, therefore the CDRPA would need to solely fund this change 
order.  See below for the original budget and the revised budget.         
 
Original Project Budget:     
 Construction Contract:  $185,052.21   
 JUB Task Authorization:  $  35,409.34 
 Subtotal:     $221,029.84 

Construction Contingency: $  14,620.16 



 Total Project Budget:   $235,650.00 
  

WSDOT Share Breakout: 
 WSDOT Grant (84%)   $198,926.86 
 CDRPA Share (16%)   $  36,723.14 
 
Revised Project Budget:     
 Construction Contract:  $185,052.21 
 Proposed Change Order:  $  54,830.40 
 JUB Task Authorization:  $  35,409.34 
 Subtotal:     $275,291.95 
 Construction Contingency: $    5,000.00 
 Total Project Budget   $280,291.95 
  

Revised WSDOT Share Breakout: 
 WSDOT Grant (71%)   $198,926.86 
 CDRPA Share (29%)   $  81,365.09 
 

 
   
 
   











Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events 5/21/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable
May 25 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

May 26 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

May 31 Monday Memorial Day/Office Closed
June 8 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
June 9 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
June 10 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
June 15 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
June 16 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
June 16-18 Wed-Friday WPPA Finance Seminar; Alderbrook (tentative)
June 22 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

June 23 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

July 5 Monday 4th of July Holiday Observed/Office Closed
July 7-9 Wed-Friday WPPA Director's Seminar; dates and location not firm.
July 8 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
July 13 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
July 14 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting

July 19-21 Mon-Wednesday
WPPA Commissioner's Seminar; Marcus Whitman Walla 
Walla; tentative

July 20 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
July 21 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
July 27 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

July 28 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

August 10 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
August 11 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
August 12 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
August 17 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
August 18 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
August 24 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

August 25 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

September 6 Monday Labor Day/Office Closed



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events 5/21/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable
September 8 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
September 9 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
September 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
September 15 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
September 21 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 

September 22-24 Wed-Friday WPPA Environmental Seminar; Alderbrook;not yet booked
September 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

September 29 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

October 12 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
October 13 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
October 14 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
October 19 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
October 20 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

October 20-22 Wed-Friday WPPA Small Ports;Enzian; not yet booked and dates not firm
October 26 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

October 27 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

November 9 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
November 10 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
November 16 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
November 17 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
November 18 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
November 23 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

November 24 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

November 25 Thursday Thanksgiving/Office Closed
November 26 Friday Day After Thanksgiving/Office Closed

December 1-3 Wed-Friday
WPPA Annual Meeting; Hyatt Regency Hotel 
Bellevue;tentative

December 8 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
December 9 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events 5/21/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable
December 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
December 15 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
December 21 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
December 23 Thursday Christmas Holiday Observed Office Closed
December 24 Friday Christmas Holiday Observed Office Closed
December 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

December 29 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

December 31 Friday New Years Day Observed/Office Closed


	05-25-2021 Agenda
	Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central Washington
	Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
	Meeting Agenda
	May 25th, 2021


	05-11-2021 Meeting Minutes
	Board of Directors
	Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
	Meeting Minutes
	May 11th, 2021


	April 2021 Calendar
	Sheet1

	Chelan Airport Master Plan Memo
	Chelan 70-17-013_ALT4B-1
	Sheets and Views
	1


	Chelan Blue Ribbon 4.21.2021 Funding Pages
	Pangborn Memorial Airport Terminal Apron Reconstruction - Authorization to Solicit Bids - Memo
	To:
	From:
	cc:
	Date:
	Re:

	Requested Standalone Pages from Pangborn 100% Sheets (Signed) (002)
	Terminal Exhibit 2 (002)
	Terminal Exhibit Rendering_5-14-21 (003)
	Waterville Airport Pavement Rehab Revised Budget - Memo (002)
	To:
	From:
	cc:
	Date:
	Re:

	US Bank Statement
	X. CDRPA Event Calendar
	Sheet1




